
 LEVY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  COMMISSIONERS 
 Government Serving Citizens John Meeks 
  Rock Meeks 
  Desiree Mills, Vice Chair 
  Tim Hodge 
  Matt Brooks, Chair 
 

P.O. Box 310 Bronson FL 32621 
Telephone: 352.486.5218 Fax: 352.486.5167 

E-mail: levybocc@levycounty.org Website: levycounty.org 
  

Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 07, 2023 

9:00 AM 
 

Public Call-In Information 
     - Conference Call Number:  1-571-317-3112 
     - Enter Access Code:  705-809-189 
     - The phone lines will open at 08:40 AM 
     - All lines will be muted; listening capabilities only 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

Invocation 
Pledge to the Flag 
Roll Call of the Commissioners 
Approval of Agenda 
     - The Commissioners will approve and/or modify the official agenda at this time. 

PROCLAMATIONS/RECOGNITIONS 

1. Recognizing Robert Lowyns for 14 years of loyal and dedicated Service to the Veterans and 
Spouses of Levy County, and for many years of serving/continuing to serve on the Planning 
Commission, until his well-earned retirement.  

2. Recognizing Don Quincey for being inducted into the 2023 Florida Agricultural Hall of Fame.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

     - Complete Public Comment Form and submit to the Board Chairman 
     - Approach podium, speak clearly into the microphone and state your full name and address 
     - Comments will be limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes per person 

9:00 AM: GOETHE STATE FOREST – Mark Larson and Logan Deuel, Forest Supervisor and Senior 
Forester 

3. Presenting the Levy County Board of County Commissioners’ with a revenue check from Goethe 
State Forest.  

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

LEVY COUNTY COORDINATOR – Wilbur Dean 

4. Requesting the Levy County Board of County Commissioners’ approval to reappoint McSween 
Huber to the Board of Adjustments, District 1. 

 

 

1



Agenda 
March 07, 2023 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

LEVY COUNTY SOLID WASTE DEPARTMENT – Rod Hastings, Administrative Director 

5. Requesting the Levy County Board of County Commissioners' approval of the purchase of a used 
Caterpillar Pan for C & D Site at a cost of $65,000.00 with trade-in credit of $35,000.00 for used 
large equipment. 

6. Requesting the Levy County Board of County Commissioners' approval to Amend the 
Consolidated Small County Solid Waste Management Grant Agreement #SC220.                                                                                       

LEVY COUNTY TRANSIT - Connie Conley, Director 

7. Requesting the Board of County Commissioners’ approval to purchase equipment approved for 
the Shirley Conroy Rural Area Capital Assistance Grant (RCAP) from the Sourcewell Contract in 
the amount of $41,172.96. 

LEVY COUNTY PROCUREMENT - Alicia Tretheway, Coordinator 

8. Requesting the Levy County Board of County Commissioners’ approval of the First Amendment 
to the Nature Coast Business Development Council Agreement. 

9. Requesting the Levy County Board of County Commissioners’ permission to proceed with issuing 
a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Food Concession Services at the Levy County Government 
Center Cafeteria. 

10. Requesting the Levy County Board of County Commissioners’ approval of Task Assignment 2023-
02 between Levy County and Wright-Pierce for Floodplain Management Services for the Levy 
County Development Department.  

LEVY COUNTY ATTORNEY – Nicolle M. Shalley  

11. Requesting the Levy County Board of County Commissioners’ approval of the Release of Unity of 
Title for Lots 3 and 4, Block F, Oak Grove Estates and authorize the Chairman to execute the 
Release document. 

12. As requested by the Board at its Regular Meeting on February 21st, Levy County Staff will 
provide an update of the meeting they had with Marion County Staff on Monday, February 27th 
regarding the Rainbow Lakes Estates Municipal Service District. After the update and discussion, 
Levy County Staff is seeking direction from the Board on whether to proceed with (1) Second 
Reading of Ordinance 2022-21 to allow mobile homes/manufactured homes in the RR-3C Zoning 
District for Rainbow Lakes Estates; or (2) drafting a new ordinance to enact zoning and other 
requirements in Levy County that match those in Marion County for Rainbow Lakes Estates, so 
there is consistency throughout the Municipal Service District.   

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

- Complete Public Comment Form and submit to the Board Chairman 
- Approach podium, speak clearly into the microphone and state your full name and address 
- Comments will be limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes per person 

Recognize Elected Officials 

 

 

2



Agenda 
March 07, 2023 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 

 

Commissioner J. Meeks 

Commissioner R. Meeks 

Commissioner D. Mills 

Commissioner T. Hodge 

Commissioner M. Brooks 

Approval of Expenditures 

Approval of LCNR Expenditures 

Approval of AMB Supply, Inc. (DBA Levy Jones) Expenditures 

Adjourn 

Should any agency or person decide to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any 
matter considered at this meeting, such agency or person will need a record of the proceedings, and for 
such purpose, may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record 
includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, person needing a special accommodation or an 
interpreter to participate in the proceeding should contact the County Clerk’s Office at (352) 486-5266, 
or the Office of the Board of County Commissioners at (352) 486-5217, at least two (2) days prior to the 
date of the meeting. Hearing-impaired persons can access the foregoing telephone number by 
contacting the Florida Relay Service at 1-800-955-8770 (Voice) or 1-800-955-8771 (TDD). 
 

3



Levy County Board of County Commissioners Agenda Item Summary Form 

 

P.O. Box 310 Bronson Florida 32621 
Telephone (352) 486-5218   Fax (352) 486-5167 

E-mail: levybocc@levycounty.org  Website:  www.levycounty.org 
 

1. Name: Matt Brooks 

2. Organization/Title/Telephone: BOCC/Chairman 

3. Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 7, 2023 

4. Requested Motion/Action:  
              Recognizing Robert Lowyns for 14 years of loyal and dedicated Service to the Veterans and 
Spouses of Levy County, and for many years of serving/continuing to serve on the Planning 
Commission, until his well-earned retirement.  

5. Agenda Presentation: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

6. Time Requested: Click or tap to enter a date. 
(Request will be granted if Possible) allotted time not more than 15 minutes 

7. Is this Item Budgeted (If Applicable): Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☒ 

8. If no, State Action Required: 

a. Budget Action:  

b. Financial Impact Summary 
Statement:   

 

c. Detailed Analysis Attached  

d. Budget Officer Approval:  

 If approved enter date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

9. Background:  (Why is the action necessary, and what action will be accomplished) (All 
supporting documentation must be attached if any)  

 

10. Recommended Approval 

a. Department Director: Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

b. County Attorney: Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

c. County Coordinator:  Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

d. Other: Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4

Item 1.

mailto:levybocc@levycounty.org
file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/7BXJERUM/www.levycounty.org


 

  

 
 

Certificate of Appreciation 
Presented to 

Robert Lowyns 
For 14 Years of Loyal and Dedicated Service to the Veterans and spouses of Levy County, 

and for many years of serving/continuing to serve on the Planning Commission. Your 

Dedication and Commitment to our Veterans and community is Greatly Appreciated.  

Until his well-earned retirement.  

March 7, 2023 

John M. Meeks, Commissioner Rock Meeks Jr., Commissioner 

Desiree Mills, Vice Chair Tim Hodge, Commissioner 

Matt Brooks, Chair 

5

Item 1.



Levy County Board of County Commissioners Agenda Item Summary Form 

 

P.O. Box 310 Bronson Florida 32621 
Telephone (352) 486-5218   Fax (352) 486-5167 

E-mail: levybocc@levycounty.org  Website:  www.levycounty.org 
 

1. Name: Matt Brooks 

2. Organization/Title/Telephone: BOCC/Chairman 

3. Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 7, 2023 

4. Requested Motion/Action:  
              Recognizing Don Quincey for being inducted into the 2023 Florida Agricultural Hall of Fame.  

5. Agenda Presentation: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

6. Time Requested: Click or tap to enter a date. 
(Request will be granted if Possible) allotted time not more than 15 minutes 

7. Is this Item Budgeted (If Applicable): Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☒ 

8. If no, State Action Required: 

a. Budget Action:  

b. Financial Impact Summary 
Statement:   

 

c. Detailed Analysis Attached  

d. Budget Officer Approval:  

 If approved enter date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

9. Background:  (Why is the action necessary, and what action will be accomplished) (All 
supporting documentation must be attached if any)  

 

10. Recommended Approval 

a. Department Director: Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☒ 

b. County Attorney: Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☒ 

c. County Coordinator:  Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☒ 

d. Other: Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☒ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6

Item 2.

mailto:levybocc@levycounty.org
file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/7BXJERUM/www.levycounty.org


 

  

 
 

Certificate of Recognition 
Presented to 

Don Quincey 
For being inducted into the 2023 Florida Agricultural Hall of Fame. Your dedication to 

the agricultural industry - leading by actions in your business and through your service 

will inspire future generations of Levy County for many years to come.  

March 7, 2023 

John M. Meeks, Commissioner Rock Meeks Jr., Commissioner 

Desiree Mills, Vice Chair Tim Hodge, Commissioner 

Matt Brooks, Chair 

7

Item 2.



Levy County Board of County Commissioners Agenda Item Summary Form 

 

P.O. Box 310 Bronson Florida 32621 
Telephone (352) 486-5218   Fax (352) 486-5167 

E-mail: levybocc@levycounty.org  Website:  www.levycounty.org 
 

1. Name: Mark Larson and Logan Deuel 

2. Organization/Title/Telephone: Goethe State Forest Supervisor/352-566-5215 

3. Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 7, 2023 

4. Requested Motion/Action:  
              Presenting the Levy County Board of County Commissioners’ with a revenue check from 
Goethe State Forest.  

5. Agenda Presentation: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

6. Time Requested: Click or tap to enter a date. 
(Request will be granted if Possible) allotted time not more than 15 minutes 

7. Is this Item Budgeted (If Applicable): Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

8. If no, State Action Required: 

a. Budget Action:  

b. Financial Impact Summary 
Statement:   

 

c. Detailed Analysis Attached  

d. Budget Officer Approval:  

 If approved enter date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

9. Background:  (Why is the action necessary, and what action will be accomplished) (All 
supporting documentation must be attached if any)  

 

10. Recommended Approval 

a. Department Director: Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

b. County Attorney: Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

c. County Coordinator:  Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

d. Other: Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8

Item 3.

mailto:levybocc@levycounty.org
file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/7BXJERUM/www.levycounty.org


Levy County Board of County Commissioners Agenda Item Summary Form 

 

P.O. Box 310 Bronson Florida 32621 
Telephone (352) 486-5218   Fax (352) 486-5167 

E-mail: levybocc@levycounty.org  Website:  www.levycounty.org 
 

1. Name: Wilbur Dean 

2. Organization/Title/Telephone: BOCC/County Coordinator 

3. Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 7, 2023 

4. Requested Motion/Action:  
              Requesting the Levy County Board of County Commissioners’ approval to reappoint McSween 
Huber to the Board of Adjustments, District 1. 

5. Agenda Presentation: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

6. Time Requested: Click or tap to enter a date. 
(Request will be granted if Possible) allotted time not more than 15 minutes 

7. Is this Item Budgeted (If Applicable): Yes ☒ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

8. If no, State Action Required: 

a. Budget Action:  

b. Financial Impact Summary 
Statement:   

 

c. Detailed Analysis Attached  

d. Budget Officer Approval:  

 If approved enter date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

9. Background:  (Why is the action necessary, and what action will be accomplished) (All 
supporting documentation must be attached if any)  

New Term will end in March 2026.  

10. Recommended Approval 

a. Department Director: Yes ☒ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

b. County Attorney: Yes ☒ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

c. County Coordinator:  Yes ☒ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

d. Other: Yes ☒ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9

Item 4.

mailto:levybocc@levycounty.org
file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/7BXJERUM/www.levycounty.org


Levy County Board of County Commissioners Agenda Item Summary Form 

 

P.O. Box 310 Bronson Florida 32621 
Telephone (352) 486-5218   Fax (352) 486-5167 

E-mail: levybocc@levycounty.org  Website:  www.levycounty.org 
 

1. Name: Rod Hastings 

2. Organization/Title/Telephone: Landfill/Administrative Director/486-3300 

3. Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 7, 2023 

4. Requested Motion/Action:  
              Approve Purchase of 615C Caterpillar Pan. 

5. Agenda Presentation: Yes ☐ No ☒ N/A ☐ 

6. Time Requested: Click or tap to enter a date. 
(Request will be granted if Possible) allotted time not more than 15 minutes 

7. Is this Item Budgeted (If Applicable): Yes ☒ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

8. If no, State Action Required: 

a. Budget Action:  

b. Financial Impact Summary 
Statement:   

Funded with Equipment Budget and multiple 
large equipment trade-in.  

c. Detailed Analysis Attached  

d. Budget Officer Approval:  

 If approved enter date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

9. Background:  (Why is the action necessary, and what action will be accomplished) (All 
supporting documentation must be attached if any)  

Purchase of Used Caterpillar Pan for C & D Site at a cost of $65,000.00 with trade-in credit 
of $35,000.00 for used large equipment. 

10. Recommended Approval 

a. Department Director: Yes ☒ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

b. County Attorney: Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

c. County Coordinator:  Yes ☒ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

d. Other: Yes ☐ No  ☐ N/A  ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10

Item 5.

mailto:levybocc@levycounty.org
file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/7BXJERUM/www.levycounty.org


11

Item 5.



12

Item 5.



mailto:levybocc@levycounty.org
file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/7BXJERUM/www.levycounty.org


AMENDMENT NO. 2 
TO AGREEMENT NO. SC220 

BETWEEN  
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION  

AND  
LEVY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  

 
This Amendment to Agreement No. SC220 (Agreement) is made by and between the Department 

of Environmental Protection (Department), an agency of the State of Florida, and Levy County Board of 
County Commissioners, 12051 N.E. 69th Lane, Williston, FL. 32696 (Grantee), on the date last signed 
below. 
 

WHEREAS, the Department entered into the Agreement with the Grantee to perform solid waste 
management operations, effective October 1, 2021;  
 
 WHEREAS, the parties wish to amend the Agreement by extending the grant period to May 31, 
2023, to allow for delivery and payment of equipment ordered before September 30, 2022; 
 
 

 NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:  
 

1) The Agreement is extended for an additional two (2) month period to begin March 31, 2023, 
and remain in effect until May 31, 2023. The Department and the Grantee shall continue to 
perform their respective duties during the extension period pursuant to the same terms and 
conditions provided in the Agreement.  
 

2) Attachment 3-A, Grant Work Plan, is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with 
Attachment 3-B, Revised Work Plan, as attached to this Amendment and hereby incorporated 
into this agreement. All references in the Agreement to Attachment 3-A shall hereinafter refer 
to Attachment 3-B, Revised Work Plan.   
 

3) All other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in effect. If and to the extent that any 
inconsistency may appear between the Agreement and this Amendment, the provisions of this 
Amendment shall control.   

 
 

The parties agree to the terms and conditions of this Amendment and have duly authorized their 
respective representatives to sign it on the dates indicated below.  
 
 

Levy County Board of County Commissioners Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection 

 
By: ___________________________________  By: ___________________________________ 

Title:        Secretary or Designee 

 

Date: _________________________________  Date: __________________________________ 

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS INCLUDED AS PART OF THIS AMEND MENT:  

Specify Type   Letter/Number     Description   

Attachment                                                  3-B   Revised Work Plan (2 pages) 

14

Item 6.



Attachment 3-B 
Page 1 of 2 

DEP Agreement No. SC220  
Rev. 6/14/2019 

STATE OF FLORIDA  
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

REVISED GRANT WORK PLAN 
DEP AGREEMENT NO. SC220 

 
ATTACHMENT 3- B 

 
PROJECT TITLE:   Levy County Small County Consolidated Solid Waste Management Grant  
 
PROJECT AUTHORITY:   Levy County (Grantee) received funding from the Florida Legislature in the 
amount of $93,750.00, through Specific Appropriation Line Item No. 1673, Solid Waste Management Trust 
Fund, Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22 General Appropriations Act. The Grantee meets the threshold for a small 
county (population under 110,000) and received this funding under the Small County Consolidated Grants 
program for the purpose of subsidizing its solid waste management program costs. Authority for this Project 
is specified in Section 403.7095, Florida Statutes (F.S.), and Chapter 62-716, Florida Administrative Code 
(F.A.C).  Monitoring and auditing guidelines, as related to the Florida Single Audit Act, are specified in the 
Florida Catalog of State Financial Assistance (CSFA), No. 37.012. 
 
PROJECT LOCATION:   Levy County Solid Waste Landfill at 12051 NE 69th Lane Williston, FL, 
32696. 
 
PROJECT BACKGROUND:   The Levy County Landfill is an integrated solid waste management system 
located in Levy County, Florida, and operates disposal facilities for Class I solid wastes, as well as recycling 
sites through the county region and Satellite Sites within the county. The Landfill has a waste tire area for 
the collection and storage of tires before they are hauled to an approved facility for disposal.   
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:   The Grantee will purchase (2) new Ford F250 pick up trucks to be utilized 
at the Levy County Landfill facility, where they will be used for landfill operations including loading and 
transportation. The Grantee will purchase the trucks via the Florida Sheriff's Association state contract. The 
Grantee will use a portion of the grant funds to pay for fuel used to operate landfill equipment. The Grantee 
needs this funding to help offset the cost of the trucks and landfill equipment fuel because of its small 
population and limited funding resources. 
 
 
TASKS and DELIVERABLES:  
 
Landfill  Operations 
 
Task 1: Landfill Equipment  and Fuel  
Task Description:  Levy County manages and operates an integrated solid waste management and disposal 
facility for Class I solid waste. Funds provided through this Agreement allow the Grantee to purchase (2) 
new Ford F250 pick up trucks for landfill operations including loading and transportation. Any costs 
exceeding the grant funding are the responsibility of the Grantee. 

Deliverables:  Completion of the task as evidenced by submittal of all the following supporting 
documentation. Purchase order(s); vendor invoice(s) for delivery, installation and start up; proof of payment 
to vendor; Bills of Lading; and pictures of equipment purchased. Completed Exhibit B, Property 
Reporting Form, with invoice copies. The Grantee will provide documentation of fuel costs by submitting 
invoices and/or spreadsheets where fuel was purchased. All documentation may be submitted 
electronically, unless paper copies are requested by the Department’s Grant Manager. 

15

Item 6.



 

Attachment 3-B 
Page 2 of 2 

DEP Agreement No. SC220 
Rev. 4/30/2018 

Performance Standard:  The Department’s Grant Manager will review the deliverables to verify that they 
meet the specifications in the Grant Work Plan and this task description. Upon review and written 
acceptance by the Department’s Grant Manager of all deliverables under this task, the Grantee may proceed 
with payment request submittal. 
 
Payment Request Schedule:  The Grantee may submit a payment request for cost reimbursement 
quarterly. Payment requests shall be submitted within thirty (30) calendar days following completion of the 
quarter. The outlined documentation for the Deliverable(s) must have been submitted and accepted in 
writing by the Department’s Grant Manager prior to payment request submittal. 
 
 
 

PROJECT TIMELINE:   The tasks must be completed by the corresponding task end date and all 
deliverables must be received by the designated due date. 
 

Task/ 
Deliverable No. Task or Deliverable Title Task Start 

Date 
Task End 

Date 
Deliverable Due 
Date/ Frequency 

1 Landfill Equipment and Fuel  10/1/2021 5/31/2023 

Quarterly, within thirty 
(30) calendar days of the 
end of each quarter and 
prior to each payment 
request. 

 
 

 
BUDGET DETAIL BY TASK:  

 

Task No. Budget Category Budget Amount 

1 
Equipment $93,238.00 
Miscellaneous/Other Expenses $512.00 

Total for Task:  $93,750.00 
 
 
 

PROJECT BUDGET SUMMARY:  Cost reimbursable grant funding must not exceed the category totals 
for the project as indicated below. 
 

Category Totals Grant Funding, Not to Exceed, 
$93,750.00 

Equipment $93,238.00 
Miscellaneous/Other Expenses $512.00 

Total:  $93,750.00 
 
 

 

 

 

  

16

Item 6.



Levy County Board of County Commissioners Agenda Item Summary Form 

 

P.O. Box 310 Bronson Florida 32621 
Telephone (352) 486-5218   Fax (352) 486-5167 

E-mail: levybocc@levycounty.org  Website:  www.levycounty.org 
 

1. Name: Connie Conley 

2. Organization/Title/Telephone: Levy County Transit/Director/352-486-3485 

3. Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 7, 2023 

4. Requested Motion/Action:  
              Requesting �š�Z�������}���Œ�����}�(�����}�µ�v�š�Ç�����}�u�u�]�•�•�]�}�v���Œ�•�[�����‰�‰�Œ�}�À���o���š�}���‰�µ�Œ���Z���•�������‹�µ�]�‰�u���v�š�����‰�‰�Œ�}�À������
for the Shirley Conroy Rural Area Capital Assistance Grant (RCAP) from the Sourcewell Contract in the 
amount of $41,172.96 

5. Agenda Presentation: Yes �•  No �•  N/A ��  

6. Time Requested: Click or tap to enter a date. 
(Request will be granted if Possible) allotted time not more than 15 minutes 

7. Is this Item Budgeted (If Applicable): Yes ��  No  �•  N/A  �•  

8. If no, State Action Required: 

a. Budget Action:  

b. Financial Impact Summary 
Statement:   

 

c. Detailed Analysis Attached  

d. Budget Officer Approval:  

 If approved enter date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

9. Background:  (Why is the action necessary, and what action will be accomplished) (All 
supporting documentation must be attached if any) Additional quotes were received for the 
listed equipment. 

The equipment requested to purchase under the Sourcewell Contract.  

Brake Lathe $16,453.70 

Tire Changer $11,031.52 

Tire Balancer $13,687.74 

10. Recommended Approval 

a. Department Director: Yes ��  No  �•  N/A  �•  

b. County Attorney: Yes �•  No  �•  N/A  �•  

c. County Coordinator:  Yes �•  No  �•  N/A  �•  

d. Other: Yes ��  No  �•  N/A  �•  

 

 

 

17

Item 7.

mailto:levybocc@levycounty.org
file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/7BXJERUM/www.levycounty.org


18

Item 7.



Levy County Board of County Commissioners Agenda Item Summary Form 

 

P.O. Box 310 Bronson Florida 32621 
Telephone (352) 486-5218   Fax (352) 486-5167 

E-mail: levybocc@levycounty.org  Website:  www.levycounty.org 
 

1. Name: Alicia Tretheway 

2. Organization/Title/Telephone: BOCC/Procurement Coordinator 

3. Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 7, 2023 

4. Requested Motion/Action:  
              �Z���‹�µ���•�š�]�v�P���š�Z�����>���À�Ç�����}�µ�v�š�Ç�����}���Œ�����}�(�����}�µ�v�š�Ç�����}�u�u�]�•�•�]�}�v���Œ�•�[�����‰�‰�Œ�}�À���o���}�(���š�Z�����&�]�Œ�•�š��
Amendment to the Nature Coast Business Development Council Agreement. 

5. Agenda Presentation: Yes �•  No �•  N/A ��  

6. Time Requested: Click or tap to enter a date. 
(Request will be granted if Possible) allotted time not more than 15 minutes 

7. Is this Item Budgeted (If Applicable): Yes �•  No  �•  N/A  ��  

8. If no, State Action Required: 

a. Budget Action:  

b. Financial Impact Summary 
Statement:   

 

c. Detailed Analysis Attached  

d. Budget Officer Approval:  

 If approved enter date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

9. Background:  (Why is the action necessary, and what action will be accomplished) (All 
supporting documentation must be attached if any)  

Section 5 of the Funding Agreement has been deleted in its entirety and replaced with a 
new Section Financial Reporting and Auditing.  

10. Recommended Approval 

a. Department Director: Yes ��  No  �•  N/A  �•  

b. County Attorney: Yes ��  No  �•  N/A  �•  

c. County Coordinator:  Yes ��  No  �•  N/A  �•  

d. Other: Yes ��  No  �•  N/A  �•  

 

 

 

 

 

 

19

Item 8.

mailto:levybocc@levycounty.org
file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/7BXJERUM/www.levycounty.org


Page 1 of 5 
 

FUNDING AGREEMENT FY2022-23 

THIS AGREEMENT is effective on October 1, 2022 between Levy County, a political 
subdivision of the State of Florida (the “County”) and Nature Coast Business Development 
Council, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit corporation (the “Council.”) 

WHEREAS, the Council was incorporated under Florida law “with the primary objective 
of improving the quality of life in the communities it serves by furthering economic 
development in Levy County, Florida, and its environs”; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners (the “Board”) has determined that 
encouraging and assisting with economic development within the County serves a valid public 
purpose consistent with Section 125.045, Florida Statutes, and to that end, the County agrees 
to provide funding to the Council for fiscal year 2022-23 as set forth in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants herein, the 
Parties agree as follows: 

1. Services.  The Council will initiate, organize and implement plans that generate economic 
development within the County throughout the 2022-23 fiscal year. 

 
2. Funding.  The County has budgeted $66,400 for the 2022-23 fiscal year and will pay such 

amount to the Council in equal quarterly installments (on or about October 1, January 1, April 1 
and July 1) of $16,600.  County funds shall be used solely for salary, operations and the services 
described in Section 1. 

  
3. Reserve Funds.  The Council has County funds from previous fiscal years that remain 

unspent and are being held in reserve by the Council.  The Council may expend these reserve 
funds solely for salary, operations and the services described in Section 1. 

  
4. Annual Budget and Reports.  The Council shall provide the County with:  

 
a. The annual budget approved by the Council (to be provided by December 1, 2022);  
b. Quarterly financial and activity reports that detail Council expenditures and economic 

development activities for the preceding quarter (to be provided by January 31, April 
30, July 31 and October 31, 2023.)  

c. An annual report, as required by Section 125.045(4), Florida Statutes, that details how 
County funds were spent by the Council and details the results of the Council’s efforts 
on behalf of the County (to be provided by December 1, 2023).  In addition, the 
Council shall, on behalf of the County, file a copy of the Annual Report with the State 
of Florida Office of Economic and Demographic Research no later than December 1, 
2023.  The County will post a copy of the annual report on the County’s website. 
  

20

Item 8.



21

Item 8.



22

Item 8.



23

Item 8.



24

Item 8.



25

Item 8.



26

Item 8.



Levy County Board of County Commissioners Agenda Item Summary Form 

 

P.O. Box 310 Bronson Florida 32621 
Telephone (352) 486-5218   Fax (352) 486-5167 

E-mail: levybocc@levycounty.org  Website:  www.levycounty.org 
 

1. Name: Alicia Tretheway 

2. Organization/Title/Telephone: BOCC/Procurement Coordinator 

3. Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 7, 2023 

4. Requested Motion/Action:  
              Requesting the Levy ���}�µ�v�š�Ç�����}���Œ�����}�(�����}�µ�v�š�Ç�����}�u�u�]�•�•�]�}�v���Œ�•�[���‰���Œ�u�]�•�•�]�}�v���š�}���‰�Œ�}�����������Á�]�š�Z��
issuing a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Food Concession Services at the Levy County Government 
Center Cafeteria. 

5. Agenda Presentation: Yes �•  No �•  N/A ��  

6. Time Requested: Click or tap to enter a date. 
(Request will be granted if Possible) allotted time not more than 15 minutes 

7. Is this Item Budgeted (If Applicable): Yes �•  No  �•  N/A  ��  

8. If no, State Action Required: 

a. Budget Action:  

b. Financial Impact Summary 
Statement:   

 

c. Detailed Analysis Attached  

d. Budget Officer Approval:  

 If approved enter date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

9. Background:  (Why is the action necessary, and what action will be accomplished) (All 
supporting documentation must be attached if any)  

General Scope of Services Attached, County Attorney still needs to review final RFP 
document and agreement.  

10. Recommended Approval 

a. Department Director: Yes ��  No  �•  N/A  �•  

b. County Attorney: Yes �•  No  �•  N/A  �•  

c. County Coordinator:  Yes �•  No  �•  N/A  �•  

d. Other: Yes �•  No  �•  N/A  �•  

 

 

 

 

 

 

27

Item 9.

mailto:levybocc@levycounty.org
file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/7BXJERUM/www.levycounty.org


The County is seeking and experienced and qualified individual or firm that clearly demonstrates the 
�Z�]�P�Z���•�š���o���À���o���}�(�������]�o�]�š�Ç���š�}���‰�Œ�}�À�]�������(�}�}�������}�v�����•�•�]�}�v���•���Œ�À�]�����•���~�^���}�v�����•�•�]�}�v�_�•���(�}�Œ county employees, visitors, 
citizens, attorneys, jurors, etc.  The County desires a wide variety of beverages that include water, sports 
drinks, tea based products, fruit drinks or fruit juice-based products, and carbonated beverages.  The 
County also desires a wide variety of snacks that shall include health snacks, in addition to typical snack 
foods. Desired menu options should consists of typical breakfast and lunch items i.e. salads, sandwiches, 
bagels, cereal etc.  Hours of operation shall be Monday through Friday 7:00 AM until 2:00 PM daily, year 
round. Closed Saturday and Sunday and on official County Holidays. Proposals may include extended 
hours of operation, which will be set a mutually agreed upon by both parties. The County is receptive to 
recommendation for innovative solutions and advanced technology for concession services.  

The Project consists of the following Scope of Services:  

1. Concessionaire Expectations: 
a. To maintain an inventory sufficient to satisfy the demands and needs of the public. 
b. To establish rules regarding customer service if and when required, subject to the 

approval of Levy County. 
c. To maintain good public relations, conduct said Concession courteously and fairly to the 

�‰�µ���o�]���U�����v�����������Œ���•�‰�}�v�•�]�À�����š�}�����µ�•�š�}�u���Œ�•�[���Œ���‹�µ���•�š�•�����v�������}�u�‰�o��ints. 
2. Background Checks:  

a. Contractor shall require all employees to have a Level 2 background check. 
b. Background checks are mandatory and shall be at the vendors sole cost and expense; no 

exceptions. 
3. Minimum Operating Hours: 

a. The Cafeteria shall be open to the public Monday through Friday 7:00 AM until 2:00 PM 
daily, year round. Closed Saturday and Sunday and on official County Holidays.  

b. The minimum required hours are non-negotiable. 
c. Proposals may include extended hours of operation, which will be set as mutually 

agreed upon by both parties. 
4. Utilities:  

a. Utility hookups are available on site. County shall pay for electric, water, sewer, garbage 
disposal services and local telephone. The County does not guarantee the uninterrupted 
service of the utilities provided for the cafeteria operation. 

b. Contractor shall pay for all other expenses, such as but not limited to long distance 
telephone charges, telecommunication charges, or cable television.  

c. The County shall not be liable in any manner for damages to Contractors business 
and/or inventory, or for any other claim by Contractor, resulting from any interruption 
in utility service, unless such interruption was caused by the sole negligence of the 
County.  

5. Facility Maintenance: The Contractor shall be responsible for: 
a. All licenses and permits for operation. 
b. Maintaining the premise in a clean, orderly and sanitary condition as required by the 

hygiene codes and standards of the Florida Department of Business and Professional 
Regulations (DBPR), the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (DACS), and 

28

Item 9.



the Department of Health (DOH) Hygiene Codes and Standards | Florida Department of 
Health (floridahealth.gov) 

c. The daily housekeeping and sanitation services in the food preparation, storage, dining 
and serving areas of the premise, which includes dining furniture, floors, walls up to six 
(6) feet above floor level, and exterior of hoods, ducts, vents and other equipment and 
fixtures used by Contractor in food storage and preparation areas.  

d. Collecting and properly packing of dry refuse from such areas and placing the packed 
refuse at site on premise designated by the County. 

e. Providing the County with prompt written notice of any structural defects, maintenance 
�‰�Œ�}���o���u�•�������Ç�}�v�����š�Z�����•���}�‰�����}�(�����}�v�š�Œ�����š�}�Œ�[�•���Œ���•�‰�}�v�•�]���]�o�]�š�Ç���}�Œ���š�Z�����v���������(�}�Œ���•�š�Œ�µ���š�µ�Œ���o��
repairs or replacements. Contractor shall be responsible for any such repairs if covered 
by or resulting from the negligent acts or omissions of Contractor, its agents, 
employees, invitees, licensees, customers or its clients.  

f. Complying with all County policies and standards regarding to facility infrastructure.  
6. Inspections:  

a. Premise are subject to inspections by Levy County and/or other regulatory agencies. 
b. The Contractor shall notify the County, in writing, within 24 hours of any potential 

violations which, under the terms of the contract, the County is responsible to correct. 
c. The Contractor is also required to notify the County, in writing, within five (5) working 

days from the date of inspection of any notices or violations. The County reserves the 
right to be present during all inspections.  

d. The County shall inspect the premise on an annual basis to determine any maintenance 
needs and operational deficiencies. Such inspections shall be performed by the Levy 
���}�µ�v�š�Ç�����}�v�•�š�Œ�µ���š�]�}�v�����v�����D���]�v�š���v���v�����������‰���Œ�š�u���v�š���~�^�D���]�v�š���v���v�����_�•�U�����v�����š�Z����
Contractor may participate in the inspections.  

e. Inspection reports shall be maintained by Maintenance and available upon review by 
Contractor, if requested. To the extent the inspection determines certain maintenance 
is required, the County is only responsible for those items which are considered part of 
the building or County-owned food service equipment.  

7. Equipment:  
a. Equipment located on premise owned by County and used by the Contractor shall be 

listed on a basic inventory approved jointly by the County and the Contractor at the 
start of the contract. Subsequent changes, additions, or deletions to the basic inventory 
shall be in writing and approved jointly by both parties.  

b. On the renewal date of the contract and at the termination date of the contract, a joint 
inventory shall be taken by the parties to verify correctness of inventory. 

c. Reasonable care, which includes but is not limited to necessary efforts to maintain 
premise, improvements, fixtures, etc., shall be exercised in the use of County equipment 
and, upon contract termination, the Contractor shall yield such equipment in as good 
condition as received, except for ordinary wear and tear, and damage or destruction 
�����Ç�}�v�������}�v�š�Œ�����š�}�Œ�[�•�����}�v�š�Œ�}�o�����v�����v�}�š�����µ�����š�}���š�Z�������}�v�š�Œ�����š�}�Œ���}�Œ���]�š�•�����u�‰�o�}�Ç�����•�[���(���µ�o�š���}�Œ��
negligence.  

d. Point of Sale Equipment:  

29

Item 9.

https://www.floridahealth.gov/environmental-health/food-safety-and-sanitation/food-manager-code-standards.html
https://www.floridahealth.gov/environmental-health/food-safety-and-sanitation/food-manager-code-standards.html


i. There shall be no interfacing or connectivity �����š�Á�����v�����}�v�š�Œ�����š�}�Œ�[�•���]�v�(�}�Œ�u���š�]�}�v��
�š�����Z�v�}�o�}�P�Ç���•�Ç�•�š���u�•�����v�������}�µ�v�š�Ç�[�•���]�v�(�}�Œ�u���š�]�}�v���š�����Z�v�}�o�}�P�Ç���•�Ç�•�š���u�•���µ�v�o���•�•���(�]�Œ�•�š��
agreed upon in writing by County and Contractor. 

ii. Any credit or debit transactions for which Contractor may serve as merchant-of-
record shall be pro�À�]���������µ�•�]�v�P�����}�v�š�Œ�����š�}�Œ�[�•���‰�}�]�v�š���}�(���•���o�������‹�µ�]�‰�u���v�š�����v�����/�v�š���Œ�v���š��
connections provided and secured by Contractor.  

8. Signs: 
a. Any and all signs, brochures, menu boards and advertising, and all print material shall be 

presented and approved by the County prior to use.  
b. Contractor may, at its own expense have the name of the business operation on the 

door, together with the hours of operation and an emergency telephone number, 
subject to County approval before installation.  

9. Modification to Premise: 
a. The County will d���o�]�À���Œ���š�Z�����•�]�š�����]�v�����v���^���•���]�•�_�����}�v���]�š�]�}�v�X���/�(���š�Z�����‰�Œ�}�‰�}�•���Œ���Á�]�•�Z���•���š�}���‰���Œ�(�}�Œ�u��

any improvements to the site, it will be their responsibility keeping in mind that it shall 
require prior written approval by the County, and pursuant to any Federal, State or local 
permitting regulations. In addition, all such additions, improvements and fixtures, 
except Contractor-owned movable furniture and equipment, shall become the property 
of the County and remain upon the premise and be surrendered at the end of the 
Contract.  

b. The Contractor shall provide a written description and plans of any changes or 
alterations to the building that will be necessary to meet the program(s) being 
proposed.  

c. Contractor shall not perform or make any alterations, improvements or additions in or 
to the premise, or install any equipment of any kind that will require any alteration or 
addition to, or use of the water, heating, air conditioning or electrical or other building 
systems or equipment, without the prior written consent of County.  

d. Any s�µ���Z�����‰�‰�Œ�}�À�������������]�š�]�}�v�•���•�Z���o�o�����������š���š�Z�������}�v�š�Œ�����š�}�Œ�[�•�����Æ�‰���v�•���X�� 
e. Contractor shall pay for all charges of labor, services and materials used in connection 

with any improvements or repairs to the premise undertaken by Contractor.  

 

30

Item 9.



Levy County Board of County Commissioners Agenda Item Summary Form 

 

P.O. Box 310 Bronson Florida 32621 
Telephone (352) 486-5218   Fax (352) 486-5167 

E-mail: levybocc@levycounty.org  Website:  www.levycounty.org 
 

1. Name: Alicia Tretheway 

2. Organization/Title/Telephone: BOCC/Procurement Coordinator 

3. Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 7, 2023 

4. Requested Motion/Action:  
              �Z���‹�µ���•�š�]�v�P���š�Z�����>���À�Ç�����}�µ�v�š�Ç�����}���Œ�����}�(�����}�µ�v�š�Ç�����}�u�u�]�•�•�]�}�v���Œ�•�[�����‰�‰�Œ�}�À���o���}�(���d���•�l�����•�•�]�P�v�u���v�š��
2023-02 between Levy County and Wright-Pierce for Floodplain Management Services for the Levy 
County Development Department.  

5. Agenda Presentation: Yes �•  No �•  N/A ��  

6. Time Requested: Click or tap to enter a date. 
(Request will be granted if Possible) allotted time not more than 15 minutes 

7. Is this Item Budgeted (If Applicable): Yes ��  No  �•  N/A  �•  

8. If no, State Action Required: 

a. Budget Action:  

b. Financial Impact Summary 
Statement:   

 

c. Detailed Analysis Attached  

d. Budget Officer Approval:  

 If approved enter date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

9. Background:  (Why is the action necessary, and what action will be accomplished) (All 
supporting documentation must be attached if any)  

Cost for these services may not exceed $35,000 annually.  

10. Recommended Approval 

a. Department Director: Yes ��  No  �•  N/A  �•  

b. County Attorney: Yes ��  No  �•  N/A  �•  

c. County Coordinator:  Yes ��  No  �•  N/A  �•  

d. Other: Yes ��  No  �•  N/A  �•  

 

 

 

 

 

 

31

Item 10.

mailto:levybocc@levycounty.org
file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/7BXJERUM/www.levycounty.org


1 �t TA 2023-3 
 

TASK ASSIGNMENT 2023-3 

ISSUED UNDER AN AGREEMENT FOR CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 

 THIS TASK ASSIGNMENT is issued by LEVY COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Florida 
�~�š�Z�����^���}�µ�v�š�Ç�_�•���š�}�������Z�E���d�d�U���&�Z�K�E���•���<�U�������Z�>�K�t�����˜���^�,�h�>���Z�����Z���,�/�d�����d�^�X�U���~�š�Z�����^���}�v�•�µ�o�š���v�š�_�•�U���‰�µ�Œ�•�µ���v�š��
to the Agreement between Levy County and Barnett, Fronczak, Barlowe & Shuler Architects., for 
���}�v�š�]�v�µ�]�v�P���W�Œ�}�(���•�•�]�}�v���o���^���Œ�À�]�����•�������š���������������u�����Œ���ô�U���î�ì�î�ì���~�š�Z�����^���}�v�š�]�v�µ�]�v�P���W�Œ�}�(���•�•�]�}�v���o���^���Œ�À�]�����•��
���P�Œ�����u���v�š�X�_�• This Task Assignment is for Professional Architectural Services for Pre-Design, Contract 
Document, Bidding and Contract Administration for the renovation of the existing building at the Levy 
County Government Center. 

 1. Scope of Services. Consultant shall provide all of the services and materials described in 
�~�š�Z�����^Scope of Work�_�•�������•���Œ�]���������]�v�����}�v�•�µ�o�š���v�š�[�•���‰�Œ�}�‰�}�•���o�������š�������&�����Œ�µ���Œ�Ç���ï�U���î�ì�î�ï���š�]�š�o�����������À���o�}�‰�u���v�š��
�����‰���Œ�š�u���v�š���K�(�(�]�������^�‰���������~�š�Z�����^�W�Œ�}�‰�}�•���o�_�•�U���Á�Z�]���Z���]�•�����š�š�����Z���������•�����Æ�Z�]���]�š���^���_���~���}�v�•�]�•�š�]�v�P���}�(���•�]�Æ�š�����v���‰���P���•�X�• 

 2. Compensation. County shall compensate Consultant for its performance of the Scope of 
Work a not to exceed amount of Seventy Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Forty Five Dollars ($79,945) as 
set forth in the Proposal. Invoices or requests for payments to Consultant shall be made in accordance 
with the Florida Local Government Prompt Payment Act, sections 218.70 through 218.79, Fla. Stat. 

 3. In the event of a conflict between the documents attached or incorporated by reference 
to this Task Assignment, the documents will be given precedence in the following order 

First: This Task Assignment; 

�^�����}�v���W���d�Z�����W�Œ�}�‰�}�•���o�����š�š�����Z���������•�����Æ�Z�]���]�š���^���_�V�����v�� 

Third: The Continuing Professional Services Agreement. 

All other terms of the Continuing Professional Services Agreement no in conflict with this Task 
Assignment. All other terms of the Continuing Professional Services Agreement not in conflict with this 
�d���•�l�����•�•�]�P�v�u���v�š���•�Z���o�o�����‰�‰�o�Ç���š�}�����}�v�•�µ�o�š���v�š�[�•���•���Œ�À�]�����•���š�}���������‰�Œ�}�À�]���������µ�v�����Œ���š�Z�]�•���d���•�l�����•�•�]�P�v�u���v�š�����v����
���}�µ�v�š�Ç�[�•���}���o�]�P���š�]�}�v�•���µ�v�����Œ���š�Z�]�•���d���•�l�����•�•�]�P�v�u���v�š�X 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Task Assignment as of the last date of 
signature for the parties set forth below. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
___________________________________ 

Matt Brooks, Chairman 
 

Date:_______________________________ 
 
 
 

32

Item 10.



2 �t TA 2023-3 
 

ATTEST: Danny J. Shipp, Clerk of 
Circuit Court and Ex-Officio Clerk to the 
Board of County Commissioners 
 
_________________________________ 
Danny J. Shipp 

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency 
 

____________________________________ 
Nicolle M. Shalley, County Attorney 

 
Barnett, Fronczak, Barlowe & Shuler Architects 

Consultant 
 

By: _________________________________ 
 

Title: _________________________________ 
 

Date: _________________________________ 

33

Item 10.



601 South Lake Destiny Road, Suite 290
Maitland, FL 32751

407.906.1776 | wright -pierce.com  

February 17, 2023 

Alicia Tretheway 
Procurement Coordinator/ADA Coordinator 
Levy County Board of County Commission 
310 School Street 
P.O. Box 310 
Bronson, Florida 32621 

SUBJECT: Task Assignment for Floodplain Management Services on a Continuing Basis 

Dear Alicia, 

Wright-Pierce is pleased to have the opportunity to submit this Task Assignment to provide floodplain 
management services under our continuing professional services agreement.  

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
Levy County (County) performs a variety of floodplain related reviews and oversight for construction and/or 
land and building alterations that occur within the County as required by the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA). These services include reviews of base flood determinations, elevation certifications, Letters 
of Map Amendment (LOMA), and Letters of Map Revision (LOMR). The County is also required to prepare and 
submit other FEMA required compliance reports and letters. These services are currently performed by in-
house staff, but the County is looking to outsource these efforts to a consultant. 

Based on this understanding of these needs ���v�����š�Z�������}�µ�v�š�Ç�[�•���Œ���‹�µ���•�š���(�}�Œ���•���Œ�À�]�����•�������š���������������u�����Œ���î�U���î022, 
Wright-Pierce proposes the following Scope of Services: 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Task A:  Attend Community Meetings  
Wright-Pierce will attend community meetings, County meetings, community outreach meetings, and other 
similar meetings when requested by the County. A senior level professional (Senior Professional Engineer, 
Senior Project Manager, Project Manager, or Engineer III) will attend such meetings as deemed mutually 
appropriate by both Wright-Pierce and the County (determined at the time the request is made).  

Task A Deliverables 
Meeting notes for each meeting attended. 

���y�,�/���/�d�����—���—

34

Item 10.



 

2/17/2023  

Alicia Tretheway  

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

 

Task B:  Track Repetitive Loss Claims  
The County tracks flood losses and National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) claims on a per parcel basis. FEMA 
must be notified when a parcel has had three NFIP claims of more than $1,000 within a ten-year period 
(Repetitive Loss). When this condition is met, the County will notify and request Wright-Pierce to prepare a 
letter to the parcel owner. The purpose of the letter is to inform them of the repetitive loss and list conditions 
and options for moving forward. Options that potentially include loss of NFIP insurability and/or risk reduction 
measures. Wright-Pierce will maintain a list of the Repetitive Loss parcels. 
 
Task B Deliverables 
We will provide the following deliverables under this Task: 

�x Repetitive Loss Letter for each parcel brought to our attention by the County. 
�x PDF copy of list of yearly Repetitive Loss parcels. 

Task C:  Prepare Compliance Letters  
Various reports, letters, and responses to FEMA requests for information are periodically required from the 
County. Wright-Pierce will work with the County Floodplain Coordinator on a case-by-case basis and assist in 
addressing such requests. 
 
Task C Deliverables 
Deliverables under this task may be wide-ranging and will be determined at the time the work is performed.  

Task D:  Technical Advisor on Floodplain Matters  
Floodplain matters can be broad and may include interpretation of regulatory rules and regulations, review of 
structure and/or land alterations, or the review or development of hydrologic and hydraulic modeling. Wright-
Pierce will provide technical advisors based on the situation at hand. To address such matters, as each need 
arises, we will meet with County officials to determine the problem/issue/concern, define the possible actions 
needed, and estimate the expected staffing and efforts needed to address the matter. 
 
Task D Deliverables 
Deliverables under this task will be determined at the time the work is performed.   

Task E:  FEMA Community Assistance Visit (CAV ) and Community Rating System ( CRS) Reporting 
Compliance  
 
Part of the NFIP's Community Assistance Program (CAP) is a CAV and possible CRS reporting. The CAV is a visit 
to a community by FEMA staff to provide technical assistance to the community and assure adequate 
enforcement of its floodplain management regulations. A CAV may consist of a tour of the floodplain, an 
inspection of community permit files, and meetings with local appointed and elected officials. If administrative 
problems or potential violations are identified during a CAV the community is notified and given the 

35

Item 10.



 

2/17/2023  

Alicia Tretheway  

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

 

opportunity to correct those administrative procedures. Wright-Pierce will participate in the CAV when 
requested by the County. A senior level professional (Senior Professional Engineer, Senior Project Manager, 
Project Manager, or Engineer III) will attend such meetings as deemed mutually appropriate by both Wright-
Pierce and the County (determined at the time the request is made). Additional support staff may need to be 
assigned based on circumstances associated with the CAV or for follow-up after the CAV. 
 
Also associated with the CAP, a CRS is a voluntary incentive program that encourages community floodplain 
management practices that exceed the minimum requirements of the NFIP. Successful participation can result 
in discounted flood insurance premium rates. Objectives of the program are to reduce and avoid flood damage 
to insurable property, strengthen and support the insurance aspects of the NFIP, and foster comprehensive 
floodplain management. Credits can be obtained for participation or enforcement of 19 FEMA-specified 
activities. Wright-Pierce will advise the County on floodplain matters with these objectives and activities in 
mind.  
 
Task E Deliverables 
Deliverables under this task may be wide-ranging and will be determined at the time the work is performed. 
However, at a minimum, we will provide the following deliverables under this Task: 

�x Meeting minutes of the CAV. 
�x CRS reporting as needed.   

Task F:  Letter of Map Amendment ( LOMA) and L etter of Map Revision (L OMR) Reviews  
As requested by the County, Wright-Pierce will review LOMAs and LOMRs submitted to FEMA and copied to 
the County. LOMAs and LOMRs are detailed hydrologic, hydraulic, and mapping efforts of pre- and post-
construction work done within a regulatory floodplain that require changes to Flood Insurance Rate Maps 
(FIRMs). These submittals go through an extensive technical review by FEMA to ensure compliance with their 
rules and regulations. Therefore, Wright-�W�]���Œ�����[�•���Œ���À�]���Á���Á�]�o�o���������o�]�u�]�š�������š�}�����•�•���•�•�]�v�P���Á�Z���š�Z���Œ���š�Z�����•�µ���u�]�š�š���o��
conforms to County rules and regulations and whether the resulting work is in conformance with the 
objectives and activities contained in the County CRS.  Typically, LOMRs are significantly more detailed 
submittals and will generally require more substantial review efforts than the simpler LOMAs.  LOMAs and 
LOMRs can also vary significantly in size and impact based on the subject area and the breadth of floodplain 
change being proposed in the LOMA and LOMR.   
 
Task F Deliverables 
We will provide a review letter to the applicant and County for each LOMA or LOMR reviewed.   

Task G:  Reviews of Zone A Base Flood Elevation Determinations  
FEMA designated Zone A flood zones are floodplains with no base flood elevation established. These zones are 
often established based on historical knowledge or events with no detailed hydraulic analysis having been 
performed. Therefore, development within or alterations to an existing structure within a Zone A requires 

36

Item 10.



 

2/17/2023  

Alicia Tretheway  

Page 4 of 6 

 

 

 

additional analysis by a licensed professional. The required analysis is situation-specific and may entail the 
following items that require review: 

�x Performing site-specific hydrologic and hydraulic calculations. 
�x Obtaining hydrologic and hydraulic calculations performed by others but not submitted/available to 

FEMA �t �^�����•�š�����À���]�o�����o���������š���_�X 
�x Request a FEMA-calculated base flood elevation determination (conditions apply). 
�x Performing graphical interpretations of the Zone A against available topographical information. 

Parcel owners/developers may request the County to review and approve their base flood elevation 
determination within a Zone A floodplain using one of these methods. When requested by the County, Wright-
Pierce will perform a review of the submittal to verify that it conforms to FEMA and County requirements. 

Task G Deliverables 
We will provide a review letter to the applicant and County for each Zone A Base Flood Elevation 
Determination reviewed.   

Task H:  Review of Elevation Certifications  
Altered or new structures within a FEMA designated floodplain must include an elevation certificate submittal 
�š�}���š�Z�������}�µ�v�š�Ç���š�}���À���Œ�]�(�Ç���š�Z���š���š�Z�����^���•�����µ�]�o�š�_��lowest floor and mechanical and electrical equipment follows FEMA 
���v�����š�Z�������}�µ�v�š�Ç�[�•���(�o�}odplain management regulations. Wright-Pierce will review Elevation Certificates 
prepared by others for new buildings or for substantial improvements to existing structures located within 
FEMA floodplains as requested by the County. This task assumes applicants will provide their own survey of 
the building or improvement to verify finish floor elevation (FFE). This will include reviewing each application 
for the following: 

�x Compliance with both FEMA/NFIP and local community requirements. 
�x Application completeness. 
�x Accuracy compared against Levy County property appraiser data. 
�x Agreement with the applicable accepted FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM). 
�x Agreement with accepted Base Flood Elevations. 
�x Accurate representation of site conditions �t a site visit will be conducted for each review in 

accordance with FEMA guidance documents. 

Structures requiring Elevation Certificates are expected to be located within four types of flood zones and 
their reviews will require varying levels of effort and cost. These types are as follows:  

Type 1 �t Zone A (no base flood elevation established). 
Type 2 �t Zone AE (base flood elevation established). 
Type 3 �t Zone AH, AO, AR, and A99 (base flood elevations established). 

37

Item 10.



 

2/17/2023  

Alicia Tretheway  

Page 5 of 6 

 

 

 

Type 4 �t Coastal V zones (base flood elevations and subject to storm surge/wave effects). 
 

Task H Deliverables 

We will provide a review letter to the applicant and County for each Elevation Certificate reviewed.   
 
CLARIFICATIONS 
This Scope of Services does not include the preparation of new studies, calculations, or designs. 
 
SCHEDULE 
A mutually agreeable schedule will be established at the time each Work Order is prepared. Task H work is 
expected to be completed within 7 calendar days from authorization and receipt of all need information from 
the applicant. 
 
FEE SCHEDULE 
An annual, not-to- exceed fee of $35,000 has been established to cover the various Work Orders that may be 
requested by the County. For each Work Order, the County will contact Wright-Pierce and provide the 
necessary information to be reviewed. Wright-Pierce will then provide a Work Order form with a Scope of 
Work and estimated fee. Work will proceed upon receipt of the executed Work Order. 
 
Fees in the Work Order and subsequent billings will be based on the actual time spent per employee times the 
hourly rate contained in the rate schedule in Exhibit A of the Continuing Professional Services Agreement. 
Expenses with be billed in accordance with Exhibit A. 

Wright-Pierce will invoice the County monthly, and a separate invoice will be provided for each Work Order.  

The maximum total compensation for the Project shall not exceed the stated total not-to-exceed fee without 
written authorization from the County. If it becomes apparent to Wright-Pierce at any time that changes in 
Scope or other issues impact total compensation, we will so notify the County in writing of the specific 
changes contemplated, the resulting adjustment in price and any required adjustment in time and will obtain 
written authorization from the County prior to any additional work being completed.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38

Item 10.



 

2/17/2023  

Alicia Tretheway  

Page 6 of 6 

 

 

 

If this Task Assignment is acceptable, please provide an authorized signature below and return a copy for our 
files. We appreciate this opportunity to be of service to you and look forward to this opportunity to work with 
you on this project. Should you have any questions or wish to discuss this proposal further, please do not 
hesitate to contact me at 407-794-1734. 
 
Sincerely,  
WRIGHT-PIERCE 
 
 
 
Walter A. Nickel, PE 
Senior Project Manager 
walter.nickel@wright-pierce.com  
 
 
 
 
Levy County Wright-Pierce, Inc. 

By: ___________________________                    By:  _______________________  
 
Name: _________________________                   Name: Ryan Wingard, PE    
  
Title: __________________________                  Title: Vice President   
 
Date: __________________________             Date: February 17, 2023__  
 
Email:__________________________        Email: ryan.wingard@wright-pierce.com 

  

39

Item 10.

mailto:walter.nickel@wright-pierce.com
mailto:ryan.wingard@wright-pierce.com


1 of 1 

Work Order No. ____ 

Between Wright-Pierce and Levy County, Florida 

for Floodplain Management Services on a Continuing Basis 

PREMISE 

On December 8, 2020, Levy County (COUNTY) entered into a Continuing Professional Services Agreement with 
Wright-Pierce, Inc. (CONSULTANT) to perform professional services on an as-needed Task Assignment basis. On 
March ____, 2023 the COUNTY entered into a Task Assignment with the CONSULTANT for Floodplain Management 
Services on a Continuing Basis. This Task Assignment defines a variety of floodplain management services that may 
be performed as Work Orders as requested by the COUNTY. This Work Order and its Scope of Work further defines 
the specific services requested by the COUNTY and authorizes the CONSULTANT to perform this work.  

WORK ORDER GENERAL INFORMATION 

Work Order/Project Name: ______________________________________ 

Work Order/Project Number: 2xxxx, Task xx 

Project Manager/Contact: Walter A. Nickel. PE, Senior Project Manager 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx. 
Xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx. 

PROJECT FEE 

CONSULTANT estimates this Work Order fee to be $x,xxx. This estimate is based on our initial review of the 
COUNTY-provided documents. Additional reviews, meetings, or more complexity or issues than initially expected, 
may increase this estimated fee. Actual fees will be based on the time spent per employee times the applicable 
hourly rate contained in Exhibit A of the Continuing Professional Services Agreement. Expenses with be billed in 
accordance with Exhibit A. 

ACCEPTANCE 

Levy County Wright-Pierce, Inc. 

By: ___________________________    By:  _______________________ 

Name: David Meyer______________    Name: Ryan Wingard, PE 

Title: _Development Director_______   Title: Vice President 

Date: __________________________   Date: _______________ 

Email:__________________________ Email: ryan.wingard@wright-pierce.com

���y�,�/���/�d���—���—

40

Item 10.

mailto:ryan.wingard@wright-pierce.com


Levy County Board of County Commissioners Agenda Item Summary Form 

 

P.O. Box 310 Bronson Florida 32621 
Telephone (352) 486-5218   Fax (352) 486-5167 

E-mail: levybocc@levycounty.org  Website:  www.levycounty.org 
 

1. Name: Nicolle Shalley 

2. Organization/Title/Telephone: County Attorney/352-486-3389 

3. Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 7, 2023 

4. Requested Motion/Action:  
              Approve the Release of Unity of Title for Lots 3 and 4, Block F, Oak Grove Estates and 
authorize the Chairman to execute the Release document 

5. Agenda Presentation: Yes ��  No �•  N/A �•  

6. Time Requested: 3 minutes 
(Request will be granted if Possible) allotted time not more than 15 minutes 

7. Is this Item Budgeted (If Applicable): Yes �•  No  �•  N/A  ��  

8. If no, State Action Required: 

a. Budget Action: EnterTextHere 

b. Financial Impact Summary 
Statement:   

EnterTextHere 

c. Detailed Analysis Attached EnterTextHere 

d. Budget Officer Approval: EnterTextHere 

 If approved enter date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

9. Background:  (Why is the action necessary, and what action will be accomplished) (All 
supporting documentation must be attached if any)  

As explained in the Whereas clauses of the Release of Unity of Title document, this is a 
request from the property owner.   

10. Recommended Approval 

a. Department Director: Yes �•  No  �•  N/A  �•  

b. County Attorney: Yes ��  No  �•  N/A  �•  

c. County Coordinator:  Yes �•  No  �•  N/A  �•  

d. Other: Yes �•  No  �•  N/A  �•  

 

 

 

 

 

 

41

Item 11.

mailto:levybocc@levycounty.org
file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/7BXJERUM/www.levycounty.org


�����������������������������3�0 �/�D�Q�G�P�D�U�N���:�H�E���2�I�I�L�F�L�D�O���5�H�F�R�U�G�V���6�H�D�U�F�K

�K�W�W�S�V�������R�Q�O�L�Q�H���O�H�Y�\�F�O�H�U�N���F�R�P���/�D�Q�G�P�D�U�N�:�H�E���V�H�D�U�F�K���L�Q�G�H�[�"�W�K�H�P�H� ���E�O�X�H�	�V�H�F�W�L�R�Q� �V�H�D�U�F�K�&�U�L�W�H�U�L�D�%�R�R�N�3�D�J�H�	�T�X�L�F�N�6�H�D�U�F�K�6�H�O�H�F�W�L�R�Q� ��������

42

Item 11.



Page 1 of 2 
 

This document prepared by and return to:  
Nicolle M. Shalley  
Levy County Attorney  
310 School Street  
Bronson , FL 32621 
 
PARCEL I.D. #   09888000000 
 

 
RELEASE OF UNITY OF TITLE  

 
 

 Whereas , on September 30, 2016, C.W. Brinkman III  and Alma L. Brinkman  
(the �³�3�U�R�S�H�U�W�\���2�Z�Q�H�U�´�� recorded a Unity of Title Instrument in Official Record Book 1401, 
Page 58, of the Public Records of Levy County, Florida, which by its terms encumbers 
Lots 3 and 4, Block F, Oak Grove  Estates, according to the plat thereof recorded in 
Plat Book 4, Pages 22 and 22A , of the Public Records of Levy County Florida (the 
�³�3�U�R�S�H�U�W�\�´�� and restricts the future transfer of the Property, except as one unified plot or 
parcel of land;  

 
Whereas , the Unity of Title Instrument states that it is a covenant running with the 

�O�D�Q�G�� �³�X�Q�W�L�O�� �V�X�F�K�� �W�L�P�H�� �D�V�� �W�K�H�� �V�D�P�H�� �P�D�\�� �E�H�� �U�H�O�H�D�V�H�G�� �L�Q�� �Z�U�L�W�L�Q�J�� �E�\�� �W�K�H�� �%�R�D�U�G�� �R�I�� �&�R�X�Q�W�\��
�&�R�P�P�L�V�V�L�R�Q�H�U�V���R�I���/�H�Y�\���&�R�X�Q�W�\���´�� 

 
Whereas , the Property Owner now requests release of the Unity of Title Instrument 

and explained the Unity of Title was required in 2016 because the Property Owner applied 
for a permit for a shed (an accessory structure) on a vacant parcel (Lot 4);  

 
Whereas , in 2016, Sec. 50-676 of the County Code did not allow an accessory 

structure to be placed on a lot in a residential subdivision (with any lot less than 5 acres) 
unless and until a prinicpal use was active within a principal structure on the lot;  

 
Whereas , since the Property Owner owned the adjoining Lot 3 which was 

improved with a principal structure (a mobile home) used for residential purposes, they 
were able to satisfy the Code requirement by filing the Unity of Title Instrument;  

 
Whereas , in making their request for release, the Property Owner informed County 

staff that the shed permitted in 2016 was recently removed from Lot 4 leaving it a vacant, 
unimproved parcel and County staff has verified that information; and     

 
Whereas , the Property Owner now desires to improve and/or convey the Property 

as separate lots and there appears to be no public purpose served by the continued Unity 
of Title encumbrance on the Property.  

 
Now therefore, the Board of County Commissioners of Levy County , Florida , 

having received the �3�U�R�S�H�U�W�\���2�Z�Q�H�U�¶�V��request for release of the Unity of Title Instrument, 
hereby releases, cancels and discharges the same of record.   

 

43

Item 11.



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
Approved by the Board this  7th  day of March, 2023. 

 
 
      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
      LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA  
 
              
ATTEST:  Clerk of the Circuit Court Russell Meeks Jr., Chairman 
and Ex Officio to the Board 
 
       
Danny J. Shipp 
 

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency 
     
              
       Nicolle M. Shalley, County Attorney 

44

Item 11.



Levy County Board of County Commissioners Agenda Item Summary Form 

 

P.O. Box 310 Bronson Florida 32621 
Telephone (352) 486-5218   Fax (352) 486-5167 

E-mail: levybocc@levycounty.org  Website:  www.levycounty.org 
 

1. Name: Nicolle Shalley 

2. Organization/Title/Telephone: County Attorney/352-486-3389 

3. Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 7, 2023 

4. Requested Motion/Action:  
              As requested by the Board at its Regular Meeting on February 21st, Levy County Staff 
will provide an update of the meeting they had with Marion County Staff on Monday, February 
27th regarding the Rainbow Lakes Estates Municipal Service District. After the update and 
discussion, Levy County Staff is seeking direction from the Board on whether to proceed with 
(1) Second Reading of Ordinance 2022-21 to allow mobile homes/manufactured homes in the 
RR-3C Zoning District for Rainbow Lakes Estates; or (2) drafting a new ordinance to enact 
zoning and other requirements in Levy County that match those in Marion County for 
Rainbow Lakes Estates, so there is consistency throughout the Municipal Service District.   

5. Agenda Presentation: Yes �•  No �•  N/A �•  

6. Time Requested: Click or tap to enter a date. 
(Request will be granted if Possible) allotted time not more than 15 minutes 

7. Is this Item Budgeted (If Applicable): Yes �•  No  �•  N/A  �•  

8. If no, State Action Required: 

a. Budget Action:  

b. Financial Impact Summary 
Statement:   

 

c. Detailed Analysis Attached  

d. Budget Officer Approval:  

 If approved enter date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

9. Background:  (Why is the action necessary, and what action will be accomplished) (All 
supporting documentation must be attached if any)  

Giving the Board an update. 

10. Recommended Approval 

a. Department Director: Yes �•  No  �•  N/A  �•  

b. County Attorney: Yes �•  No  �•  N/A  �•  

c. County Coordinator:  Yes �•  No  �•  N/A  �•  

d. Other: Yes �•  No  �•  N/A  �•  

 

 

 

 

45

Item 12.

mailto:levybocc@levycounty.org
file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/7BXJERUM/www.levycounty.org


CHAPTER 2001-293

Committee Substitute for House Bill No. 479

An act relating to the Rainbow Lakes Estates Municipal Service Dis-
trict, an independent special district of the State of Florida in Mar-
ion and Levy Counties; codifying the district's charter, chapter 69-
1298, Laws of Florida, as amended, pursuant to section 189.429,
Florida Statutes; providing legislative intent; amending, codifying,
and reenacting all special acts relating to the Rainbow Lakes Es-
tates Municipal Service District as a single act; repealing all prior
special acts related to the Rainbow Lakes Estates Municipal Service
District; providing an effective date.

Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

Section 1. Pursuant to section 189.429, Florida Statutes, this act consti-
tutes the codification of all special acts relating to the Rainbow Lakes Es-
tates Municipal Service District. It is the intent of the Legislature in enact-
ing this law to provide a single comprehensive special act charter for the
district, including all current legislative authority granted to the district by
its several legislative enactments and any additional authority granted by
this act. It is further the intent of this act to preserve all district authority.

Section 2. Chapters 69-1298 and 97-375, Laws of Florida, are codified,
reenacted, amended, and repealed as herein provided.

Section 3. The charter for the Rainbow Lakes Estates Municipal Service
District is re-created and reenacted to read:

Section 1. Creation and boundaries.ÐThe creation of the Rainbow Lakes
Estates Municipal Service District as an independent special district pursu-
ant to chapter 69-1298, Laws of Florida, as amended, is ratified and con-
firmed and the lands lying within the area described as follows in Marion
and Levy Counties, State of Florida, shall hereby constitute the Rainbow
Lakes Estates Municipal Service District:

All those certain lands lying and being situate in the Counties of Marion
and Levy, State of Florida, lying in Sections 13, 14, 23 and 24, Township 15
South, Range 17 East, in Sections 6, 7, 8, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 25, 26, 27,
28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35 and 36, Township 15 South, Range 18 East and
Sections 5 and 6, Township 16 South, Range 18 East and being more fully
and particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at the Northwest corner of Section 6, Township 15 South,
Range 18 East and run thence along and with the North boundary of said
Section 6, N89°24¢38²E a distance of 2556.10 feet to the North 1 /4 corner
of said Section 6; thence along and with the East boundary of the West
half of said Section 6, S00°11¢57²E a distance of 530.09 feet to the South
1/4 section corner of said Section 6; thence along and with the East bound-
ary of the West half of Section 7, Township 15 South, Range 18 East,
S00°11¢51²W a distance of 2647.61 feet to the Southwest corner of the NE
1/4 of said Section 7; thence along and with the North boundary of Section

1
CODING:  Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

46

Item 12.



7, N89°21¢59²E a distance of 2591.91 feet to the Northeast corner of SE
1/4 of Section 7; thence along and with the North boundary of the SW 1 /4
of Section 8, Township 15 South, Range 18 East, S89°55¢14²E a distance
of 2639.33 feet to the Northeast corner of the SW 1 /4 of said Section 8;
thence along and with the East boundary of said SW 1 /4; S00°10¢51²W a
distance of 2643.28 feet to the South 1 /4 section corner of said Section 8;
thence along and with the South boundary of said Section 8, S89°52¢09²E
a distance of 2658.52 feet to the Southeast corner of said Section 8;
thence along and with the East boundary of Section 17, Township 15
South, Range 18 East, S00°00¢15²W a distance of 5280.36 feet to the
Southeast corner of said Section 17; thence along and with the North
boundary of Section 21, Township 15 South, Range 18 East, S89°48¢37²E
a distance of 2689.11 feet to the Northeast corner of the NW 1 /4 of said
Section 21; thence along and with the East boundary of said NW 1 /4,
S00°21¢50²W a distance of 2595.69 feet to the Southeast corner of said
NW 1/4; thence along and with the North Boundary of the SE 1 /4 of said
Section 21, S89°50¢46²E a distance of 2651.46 feet to the West 1 /4 Section
corner of Section 22, Township 15 South, Range 18 East; thence along
and with the West Boundary of said Section 22, N00°08¢20²E a distance
of 2599.69 feet to the Northwest corner of said Section 22; thence along
and with the North boundary of the NW 1 /4 of said Section 22,
N89°52¢38²E a distance of 1328.60 feet to the Northeast corner of the
West 1/2 of said NW 1 /4; thence along and with the East boundary of said
West 1/2 of the NW 1 /4, S00°12¢32²W a distance of 2606.04 feet to the
Southeast corner of said West 1 /2 of the NW 1 /4; thence along and with the
North boundary of the SW 1 /4 of said Section 22, S89°50¢56²E a distance
of 1325.37 feet to the Northeast corner of said SW 1 /4; thence along and
with the East boundary of said SW 1 /4 S00°16¢45²W a distance of 2647.64
feet to the South 1 /4 Section corner of said Section 22; thence along and
with the South boundary of said Section 22, N88°48¢37²W a distance of
1322.36 feet to the Northeast corner of the West 1 /4 of Section 27, Town-
ship 15 South, Range 18 East; thence along and with the East boundary
of the West 1/4 of said Section 27, S00°07¢07²W a distance of 3970.74 feet,
thence S89°39¢48²E 3983.94 feet to the Northeast corner of the South 1 /4
of said Section 27; thence along and with the North boundary of the
South half of the SW 1 /4 of Section 26, Township 15 South, Range 18 East,
S89°58¢12²E a distance of 2645.64 feet to the Northeast corner of said
South half of SW 1 /4; thence along and with the East boundary of said
South half of the SW 1 /4, S00°10¢28²E 1321.12 feet to the North 1 /4 section
corner of Section 35, Township 15 South, Range 18 East; thence along
and with the North boundary of said Section 35, S89°36¢30²E a distance
of 2628.61 feet to the Northeast corner of said Section 35; thence along
and with the West boundary of the South half of the SW 1 /4 of Section 25,
Township 15 South, Range 18 East, N00°01¢20²W a distance of 1329.32
feet to the Northwest corner of the South half of the SW 1 /4 of said Section
25; thence along and with the North boundary of said South half of the
SW 1/4, N89°50¢57²E a distance of 2660.96 feet to the Northeast corner of
the South half of the SW 1 /4 of said Section 25; thence along and with the
East boundary of said South half of the SW 1 /4, S00°19¢30²W a distance
of 1336.36 feet to the South 1 /4 section corner of said Section 35; thence
S00°32¢00²E a distance of 360.91 feet; thence S89°59¢00²E a distance of

Ch. 2001-293 LAWS OF FLORIDA Ch. 2001-293

2
CODING:  Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

47

Item 12.



558.83 feet to a point on the West right of way line of Florida State Road
No. 45 (U.S. Highway No. 41); thence along and with said right of way
line, S09°17¢00²W a distance of 926.57 feet; thence departing from said
right of way line, S89°58¢00²W a distance of 400.85 feet to the Southeast
corner of the North half of the NW 1 /4 of Section 36, Township 15 South,
Range 18 East; thence along and with the South boundary of said North
half of the NW 1 /4, S89°50¢42²W a distance of 2661.90 feet to the South-
west corner of said North half of NW 1 /4 of Section 36; thence along the
East boundary of Section 35, Township 15 South, Range 18 East,
S00°08¢00²E a distance of 1302.61 feet to the East quarter section corner
of said Section 35; thence along and with the East-West 1 /4 section line
of said Section 35, S89°47¢40²W a distance of 5280.35 feet to the West
1/4 section corner of said Section 35; thence along and with the East
boundary of Section 34, Township 15 South, Range 18 East, S00°03¢00²E
a distance of 3134.16 feet to the Southeast corner of said Section 34;
thence along and with the South boundary of said Section 34,
N89°02¢07²W a distance of 2650.44 feet to the South 1 /4 section corner of
said Section 34; thence N89°01¢48²W a distance of 2649.32 feet to the
Southwest corner of said Section 34; thence along and with the South
boundary of Section 33; Township 15 South, Range 18 East,
N89°26¢31²W a distance of 2657.52 feet to the South 1 /4 section corner of
said Section 33; thence along and with said South boundary,
N89°24¢58²W a distance of 2658.28 feet to the Southwest corner of said
Section 33; thence along and with the South boundary of Section 32,
Township 15 South, Range 18 East, N89°45¢12²W a distance of 2650.30
feet to the South 1 /4 section corner of said Section 32; thence continuing
along said South boundary, N89°44¢44²W a distance of 2343.81 feet to
a point in said South boundary; thence departing from said South bound-
ary and entering Section 5, Township 16 South, Range 18 East run due
South a distance of 455.00 feet; thence N89°44¢44²W a distance of 306.89
feet to a point in the East boundary of Section 6, Township 16 South,
Range 18 East; thence entering said Section 6 run S89°44¢07²W a dis-
tance of 760.11 feet; thence due North a distance of 455.00 feet to a point
in the South boundary of Section 31, Township 15 South, Range 18 East;
thence along the South boundary of said Section 31, S89°44¢07²W, a
distance of 1885.56 feet to the South 1 /4 section corner of said Section 31;
thence along and with the West boundary of the East half of said Section
31, N00°17¢06²W a distance of 5611.32 feet to the North 1 /4 section corner
of said Section 31; thence along and with the West boundary of the SW
1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 30, Township 15 South, Range 18 East,
N00°58¢34²E a distance of 1298.40 feet to the Northwest corner of said
SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4; thence along and with the North boundary of said SW
1/4 of SE 1/4, N89°31¢42²E a distance of 1304.26 feet to the Northeast corner
of said SW 1/4 of SE 1/4; thence along and with the West boundary of the
East 1/4 of said Section 30, N00°32¢15²E a distance of 2618.29 feet to the
Southeast corner of the NW 1 /4 of NE 1/4 of said Section 30; thence along
and with the South boundary of the NW 1 /4 of said Section 30; thence
along the South boundary of the NE 1 /4 of NW 1/4 of said Section 30,
S88°25¢58²W a distance of 1284.91 feet to the Southeast corner of the NE
1/4 of NW 1/4 of said Section 30; thence along the South boundary of the
NE 1/4 of NW 1/4 of said Section 30, S89°39¢23²W a distance of 1324.84 feet

Ch. 2001-293 LAWS OF FLORIDA Ch. 2001-293

3
CODING:  Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

48

Item 12.



to the Northeast corner of the SW 1 /4 of the NW 1 /4 of said Section 30;
thence along and with the East boundary of the SW 1 /4 of the NW 1 /4,
S00°48¢47²W a distance of 1310.37 feet to the Southeast corner of said
SW 1/4 of NW 1/4; thence along and with the South boundary of said SW
1/4 of NW 1/4, S89°01¢07²W a distance of 1321.41 feet to the West 1/4 section
corner of said Section 30; thence along and with the West boundary of
said Section 30, N00°39¢00²E a distance of 2650.09 feet to the Northwest
corner of said Section 30; thence along and with the West boundary of
Section 19, Township 15 South, Range 18 East, N00°16¢24²E a distance
of 1324.20 feet to the Southeast corner of the NE 1 /4 of the SE 1/4 of Section
24, Township 15 South, Range 17 East; thence along and with the South
boundary of the North 3 /4 of Section 24, Township 15 South, Range 17
East, N89°46¢40²W a distance of 5322.30 feet to the Southwest corner of
said North 3 /4; thence along and with the West boundary of said Section
24, N00°00¢56²W a distance of 1326.27 feet to the East 1 /4 section corner
of Section 23, Township 15 South, Range 17 East; thence along and with
the South boundary of North 1 /2 of said Section 23, S89°09¢25²W a dis-
tance of 2636.62 feet to a point in the East right of way line of a Levy
County road; thence along and with said right of way line, N37°12¢29²W
a distance of 2149.11 feet; thence continuing along said right of way line,
N33°03¢06²W a distance of 94.83 feet; thence departing from said right
of way line and running along with the West boundary of the East 3 /4 of
the North 1 /2 of said Section 23, N01°09¢53²E a distance of 953.69 feet to
the Northwest corner of the NE 1 /4 of the NW 1 /4 of said Section 23; thence
along and with the North boundary of said Section 23, S89°18¢53²E a
distance of 1322.54 feet to the South 1 /4 section corner of Section 14,
Township 15 South, Range 17 East; thence along and with the West
boundary of the East 1 /2 of said Section 14, N00°02¢17²E a distance of
5325.47 feet to the North 1 /4 section corner of said Section 14; thence along
and with the North boundary of said Section 14, S89°41¢00²E a distance
of 2642.57 feet to the Northeast corner of said Section 14; thence along
the East boundary of said Section 14, S00°00¢42²W a distance of 2671.40
feet to the Northwest corner of the West 3 /4 of the South 1 /2 of Section 13,
Township 15 South, Range 17 East; thence along and with the North
boundary of said West 3 /4 of South 1/2 of Section 13, S89°23¢29²E a distance
of 4020.70 feet to the Northeast corner of the West 3 /4 of the South 1 /2 of
Section 13; thence along and with the East boundary of said West 3 /4 of
the South 1 /2, S00°12¢36²W a distance of 2655.48 feet to the Southeast
corner of said West 3 /4 of the South 1 /2; thence along and with the South
boundary of said Section 13, S89°36¢43²E a distance of 1337.12 feet to the
Northeast corner of Section 24, Township 15 South, Range 17 East;
thence along and with the West boundary of Section 18, Township 15
South, Range 18 East, N00°14¢56²E a distance of 5299.43 feet to the
Southwest corner of Section 7, Township 15 South, Range 18 East;
thence along and with the West boundary of said Section 7, N00°17¢26²E
a distance of 2649.16 feet to the West 1 /4 section corner of said Section 7;
thence continue along and with said West boundary, N00°02¢03²E a
distance of 2650.95 feet to the Southwest corner of Section 6, Township
15 South, Range 18 East; thence along and with the West boundary of
said Section 6, N00°22¢30²E a distance of 2653.72 feet to the West 1 /4
section corner of said Section 6; thence continuing along and with the

Ch. 2001-293 LAWS OF FLORIDA Ch. 2001-293

4
CODING:  Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

49

Item 12.



said West boundary, N00°02¢30²E a distance of 2654.32 feet to the Point
of Beginning.

Section 2. The Board of County Commissioners of Marion County, Flor-
ida, shall constitute the district board of said municipal service district and
shall constitute the governing board of said district. Such district shall be
a body corporate and politic, exercising essential governmental functions,
and shall have the power to sue and be sued; to contract; to adopt and use
a common seal and alter the same at pleasure; to purchase, hold, lease, or
otherwise acquire and convey such real property and personal property and
interest therein as may be necessary or proper to carry out the purposes of
this law. The Clerk of the Circuit Court of Marion County, Florida, shall be
the ex officio clerk and treasurer of the district.

Section 3. The district board of said district is authorized and empow-
ered:

(a) To make rules and regulations for its own government and proceed-
ings and to adopt an official seal for the district.

(b) To employ engineers, attorneys, accountants, financial or other ex-
perts, and such other agents and employees as said district board may
require or deem necessary to effectuate the purposes of this law, or to
contract for any of such services.

(c) To provide the following municipal services within said district:

(1) Road maintenance and lighting.

(2) Maintenance and operation of all public lands and all public civic and
recreational facilities.

(3) Law enforcement.

(4) Fire protection.

(d) To exercise zoning powers consistent with and for the enforcement of
existing deed restrictions and covenants contained in or incorporated in
conveyances of lots in the subdivision of Rainbow Lakes Estates.

(e) To provide for and regulate and control the furnishing of water, gas,
electric, telephone, and other public utility services within said district,
including the franchising and taxing of such services.

(f) To acquire in the name of the district by purchase, gift, or the exercise
of the right of eminent domain such lands and right and interest therein,
including lands under water and riparian rights, and to acquire such per-
sonal property as it may deem necessary in connection with the furnishing
of services authorized by this law and to hold and dispose of all real and
personal property under its control; however, nothing herein contained shall
authorize the power of eminent domain to be exercised beyond the limits of
the district.

(g) To restrain, enjoin, or otherwise prevent the violation of this law or
of any resolution, rule, or regulation adopted pursuant to the powers
granted by this law.

Ch. 2001-293 LAWS OF FLORIDA Ch. 2001-293

5
CODING:  Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

50

Item 12.



(h) To join with any other district or districts, cities, towns, counties, or
other political subdivisions, public agencies, or authorities in the exercise of
common powers.

(i) To levy an ad valorem maintenance tax upon all taxable real and
personal property within said district not to exceed 3 mills during any one
year. Such maintenance tax shall be levied and collected in the manner
provided for the levy and collection of county ad valorem taxes. The district
board shall certify each year to the tax collectors of Marion County and Levy
County, respectively, the millage levied as such maintenance tax and said
tax collectors shall be ex officio tax collectors for the district, and such taxes
shall be levied and collected in the same manner as other general county
taxes. Taxes collected shall be remitted by said tax collectors to the Clerk
of the Circuit Court for Marion County, Florida, as ex officio clerk and
treasurer of said district.

(j) To levy and assess special assessments to fund municipal services
within said district. The district board shall certify each year to the tax
collectors of Marion County and Levy County, respectively, a non-ad va-
lorem assessment roll, and said tax collectors shall be ex officio tax collectors
for the district, and such special assessments shall be levied and collected
pursuant to general law. Special assessments collected shall be remitted by
said tax collectors to the Clerk of the Circuit Court for Marion County as ex
officio clerk and treasurer of said district.

(k) To borrow money and issue bonds, certificates, warrants, notes, or
other evidences of indebtedness.

Section 4. The annual fiscal year for the operation of said district shall
run from October 1 of each year to September 30 of the following year. The
district board on or before July 1 of each year shall hold a public hearing and
adopt a budget setting forth the amounts necessary for the costs and ex-
penses of furnishing the municipal services authorized by this law, including
the maintenance and upkeep of the roads and facilities as authorized by this
law, which budget shall serve as a basis for the annual levying of the ad
valorem tax herein provided. All funds received from said ad valorem taxes
and from all other sources shall be deposited in a special fund by the treas-
urer of the district and shall only be expended pursuant to said budget and
pursuant to the laws of Florida regulating county budgets and the expendi-
ture of county funds.

Section 5. The Board of County Commissioners of Levy County, Florida,
is hereby authorized and empowered by resolution to delegate to and con-
tract with the Board of County Commissioners of Marion County, Florida,
for the administration of this law and the furnishing of the municipal ser-
vices provided for in this law by the district and the district board to the area
of said district lying within the boundaries of Levy County, Florida.

Section 6. The district board of said district shall appoint an advisory
committee consisting of seven registered electors residing within said dis-
trict, six of whom shall be residents of Marion County, Florida, and one of
whom shall be a resident of Levy County, Florida, to serve for a term of 4
years or until their successors be appointed. Vacancies in said committee

Ch. 2001-293 LAWS OF FLORIDA Ch. 2001-293

6
CODING:  Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

51

Item 12.



due to death, disability, or removal of residence from the district shall be
filled by the district board for the balance of the unexpired term of any
member dying, becoming disabled, or removing his or her residence from the
district.

Section 7. In accordance with section 189.404(3), Florida Statutes, the
following subsections shall constitute the minimum charter requirements of
the Rainbow Lakes Estates Municipal Service District:

(a) The district is organized and exists for the purposes set forth in this
act and for the purpose of providing municipal services within the bounda-
ries of the district as may be authorized by general law.

(b) The powers, functions, and duties of the district regarding ad valorem
taxation, bond issuance, other revenue-raising capabilities, budget prepara-
tion and approval, liens and foreclosure of liens, use of tax deeds and tax
certificates as appropriate for non-ad valorem assessments, and contractual
agreements shall be as set forth in chapters 170, 189, 197, and 298, Florida
Statutes, or any other applicable general or special law, as they may be
amended from time to time.

(c) The district was created by a majority of the electors of the district
voting in a special election held in November 1969, pursuant to chapter 69-
1298, Laws of Florida.

(d) The district's charter may be amended only by special act of the
Legislature.

(e) The Marion County Board of County Commissioners is the governing
board of the district. The membership and organization of the governing
board shall be as set forth in this act and applicable general laws.

(f) The compensation of board members shall be as provided in this act
and applicable general law.

(g) The administrative duties of the board shall be as set forth in this act
and applicable general law.

(h) Requirements for financial disclosure, noticing, and reporting shall
be as set forth in this act and applicable general law.

(i) The procedures and requirements governing the issuance of bonds,
notes, and other evidences of indebtedness shall be as set forth in chapter
189, Florida Statutes, and applicable general law.

(j) District elections or referenda shall be conducted as set forth in this
act and applicable general law.

(k) The district may be financed by any method set forth in this act or
applicable general law.

(l) The district is authorized to levy ad valorem taxes at a rate not to
exceed 3 mills during any one year.

Ch. 2001-293 LAWS OF FLORIDA Ch. 2001-293

7
CODING:  Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

52

Item 12.



(m) The method for collecting non-ad valorem assessments, fees, or ser-
vice charges shall be as set forth in this act and applicable general law.

(n) The district's planning requirements shall be as set forth in chapter
189, Florida Statutes, and applicable general law.

(o) The geographic boundaries of the district shall be as set forth in
section 1 of this charter.

Section 4. The provisions of this act shall be liberally construed in order
to effectively carry out the purposes of this act in the interest of the public
health, welfare, and safety of the citizens served by the district.

Section 5. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this
act is held to be unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity
of the remaining portions of the act, the Legislature hereby declaring that
it would have passed this act and each section, subsection, sentence, clause,
and phrase thereof, irrespective of any other separate section, subsection,
sentence, clause, or phrase thereof, and irrespective of the fact that any one
or more other sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases thereof
may be declared unconstitutional.

Section 6. Chapters 69-1298 and 97-375, Laws of Florida, are repealed.

Section 7. This act shall take effect upon becoming a law.

Approved by the Governor May 29, 2001.

Filed in Office Secretary of State May 29, 2001.

Ch. 2001-293 LAWS OF FLORIDA Ch. 2001-293

8
CODING:  Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

53

Item 12.



54

Item 12.



55

Item 12.



56

Item 12.



57

Item 12.



58

Item 12.



59

Item 12.


